

CITY OF BELLAIRE TEXAS

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT APRIL 16, 2015

Council Chamber Regular Session 7:00 PM

7008 S. RICE AVENUE BELLAIRE, TX 77401

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Sharp called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.

2. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG (US AND TEXAS)

Chairman Sharp led the Board and the public in the pledges to both flags.

Texas Pledge: (Honor the Texas Flag: I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas one state under God, one and indivisible).

3. CERTIFICATION OF A QUORUM

Chairman Sharp certified that a quorum was present, consisting of the following members:

Attendee Name	Title	Status	Arrived
Patty McGinty	Board Member	Present	
Amar Raval	Board Member	Present	
Tom Ligh	Vice Chairman	Present	
Debbie Sharp	Chairman	Present	
Debbie Karakowsky	Board Member	Present	
Sean Wheeler	Board Member	Present	
Seth A. Miller	Board Member	Present	
Alan P. Petrov	City Attorney	Present	
ChaVonne Sampson	Development Services Manager	Present	
Ashley Parcus	Secretary	Present	

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Board of Adjustment - Regular Session - Jan 15, 2015 7:00 PM

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Debbie Karakowsky, Board Member

SECONDER: Patty McGinty, Board Member

AYES: McGinty, Raval, Ligh, Sharp, Karakowsky, Wheeler, Miller

5. REPORTS FROM OFFICERS, COMMITTEES, SUB-COMMITTEES AND COMMUNICATIONS BOARD MEMBERS HAVE HAD OUTSIDE THE MEETING

There were no reports.

6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

There was no unfinished business.

City of Bellaire Texas Generated: 7/10/2015 2:40 PM Page 1

7. READING OF THE STANDARDS FROM SECTION 24-704, BELLAIRE CODE OF ORDINANCES

Mrs. Sampson read the Standards from Section 24-704.

8. NEW BUSINESS

A. Public Hearings

1. BOA-2015-01-Request filed by Rehan Memon, owner of the property at 4701 Pine Street, for a Special Exception to allow for the construction of a 10 foot concrete masonry unit (CMU) wall on the north and east side of the property in lieu of the 8 foot allowance as determined by Chapter 24, Section 512 A. of the City of Bellaire Code of Ordinances. The property is located in the R-3 Zoning District.

Chairman Sharp explained the public hearing process to the public.

Presentation by the Applicant

Mr. Rehan Memon, owner of 4701 Pine St.-Mr. Memon informed the Board that he is requesting this exception because he does not believe that in his case the 8 foot allowance is adequate enough to block the sight and sound of Loop 610. He explained that his house is taller than the neighboring homes, which gets him a better flood insurance rate, but also allows for more exposure to the 610 Freeway. He also mentioned that there were several trees acting as an additional buffer from 610, but they were cut down. Mr. Memon stated that he has two small children and it is very noisy and unsettling. He does not feel that an 8 foot fence/wall would allow for enough security, privacy, and noise reduction for his family. Mr. Memon explained that he has also installed several noise-reducing products in his home, but they still fail to provide the barrier that he would like.

Staff Findings

ChaVonne Sampson, Development Services Manager-Mrs. reiterated that Mr. Memon is asking for a Special Exception to allow for a 10 foot wall at 4701 Pine Street, which is located in the R-3 Zoning District. She stated that the application was submitted on March 25, 2015, that mail outs were sent on April 6, 2015, and that the notice was published in the Southwest News on April 7, 2015. Mrs. Sampson explained that the applicant did receive a Certificate of Occupancy on January 9, 2015, after which a permit application and plans were submitted to the City for the construction of a 10 foot masonry wall. She stated that those plans were approved and the permit was issued by the City in error. Mrs. Sampson informed the Board that during construction there was a stop work order put on the property once the City realized that the 8 foot allowance was not being followed. She stated that at that time, the City informed the applicant that although the plans were mistakenly approved, the applicant must still honor City Code. Mrs. Sampson added that the applicant is requesting a special exception based on the property's proximity to the 610 Frontage Road and the flood plain classification requiring the first floor of the home to be built at an elevation above grade. She explained that the site has a ground level of 53.2 and a first floor elevation of 56.5. Mrs. Sampson then reviewed the standards for granting a special exception, and stated that the Director of Development Services believes that the application does meet the requirements outlined in Section 24-718 and is eligible for consideration. She pointed out that based upon how the fence came to be and its location and exposure to the 610 frontage the Director does not oppose the granting of this request. Mrs. Sampson added that the Fire Chief did submit a written comment detailing his apprehension with the allowance of a 10 foot wall as it relates to the access of first responders onto the property. She stated that his recommendation, if the Special Exception was granted, would be to install a Knox Box in order for the fire department/police department to gain access to the property.

Public Comments

Cody Crochet, 902 Lennette-Mr. Crochet informed the Board that he lives right down the street from the applicant, in a house that backs up to 610. He stated that he can attest to the constant noise that is produced by the traffic on the freeway, and felt that in Mr. Memon's case, an 8 foot structure would not be adequate to alleviate this issue. He mentioned that a retaining wall was to be installed on 610 when the recent improvements were done, but this never happened. Due to the height of Mr. Memon's home, Mr. Crochet felt that a 10 foot wall would be very beneficial to him and his family.

Lynn McBee-Ms. McBee mentioned that there had been an increase in the required home construction elevation due to the new measurements of the flood plain and asked if there had been any consideration in the increase of allowable fence height in order to match that change. She also believed that the City is at fault for not having foreseen this need earlier on. Ms. McBee didn't know if she could support the approval of the application due to the fact that it would create inconsistencies within the neighborhood. She suggested that the Board make a recommendation to the City to review the zoning regulations with regard to fence height and tie it into the elevation requirements for home construction.

Questions by the Board

Vice Chairman Ligh asked Mr. Memon if he purchased this home after it was already built.

Mr. Memon explained that he bought it from a private party during the last stages of construction. He informed the Board that it wasn't until after he and his family had moved in that he realized the noise and sight of the 610 traffic was too much.

Board Member Ligh mentioned that the new wall is being constructed outside the already existing fence and asked if the proposed structure was within his property boundaries or in the 610 R.O.W.

Mrs. Sampson stated that the wall is located on the property line, and that the existing fence was inside the property line.

Board Member Miller asked for a copy of the Fire Chief's written comment.

Board Member Miller asked Mr. Memon if he was prepared to provide evidence to support all the standards required in order for the Board to grant the Special Exception.

Mr. Memon stated that he felt his application met all of the standards and didn't know how he would be able to provide specific evidence to support each of those. He added that he didn't feel as though his proposal would negatively impact the neighborhood due to the fact that his house is on a corner lot with a vacant house next door, and that there was no consistency with the fences that are

currently existing. Mr. Memon stated that the proposed wall would be more safe for the surrounding residents, and that he doesn't have any problem providing a Knox Box as requested by the Fire Department. He felt that the 10 foot wall would not affect the property values of other homes in the area, but didn't know what evidence to provide to support that.

Board Member Karakowsky mentioned that the standards the Board is asked to take into consideration have nothing to do with aesthetics and/or fairness, they are simply focused on the affect that the wall would have on the neighboring properties with regards to safety and property values. She asked Mr. Memon if any of his neighbors had approached him with negative opinions about the wall.

Mr. Memon stated that it was the opposite. He explained that he had one neighbor approach the contractor about extending the 10 foot wall to his property.

The neighbor was present in the audience and asked if he could address his comments to the Board.

Board Member Karakowsky made a motion to suspend the Rules of Procedure in order to hear comments from the resident. Board Member Miller seconded the motion.

Another member of the audience came forward wishing to address the Board.

Board Member Karakowsky amended her motion to include a time limit of 5 minutes per speaker. Board Member Miller seconded her amended motion.

A third member of the audience came forward to speak.

Board Member Miller amended the motion again to reduce the time limit to 3 minutes per person. Board Member Raval seconded the motion.

Vote: 5-2. The motion to reduce the time limit to 3 minutes passed.

Vote on the original motion: 6-1. The motion to suspend the Rules of Procedure and allow for additional public comment was passed.

Alan Chodrow, 4701 Pine Circle-Mr. Chodrow explained that he noticed that a new fence was being built and took concern because he had been paying for the maintenance and repair of the existing fence. He added that he volunteered to buy the existing materials when Mr. Memon informed him that he was going to sell them. Mr. Chodrow mentioned that he then asked Mr. Memon what the fence was costing him to build in an effort to possibly extend it, but had not been able to contact anyone from the house that is currently vacant, and was also aware that a 10 foot fence was not allowed. He added that the property value of the other two homes along the fence line will be negatively impacted if/when he and the other property owner decide to sell their house. Mr. Chodrow also mentioned that there will be a difference in the fence lines of the new wall and existing fence, which will create an opening onto Mr. Memon's property.

Show-Yien Lee, 4700 Pine Circle-Ms. Lee explained that she owns the vacant home that has been referenced as being in between Mr. Memon and Mr. Chodrow's properties, and that she is in the process of trying to sell it. She stated that she sympathizes with the applicant but isn't sure what to do with regards to

the inconsistency of the structures. Ms. Lee felt that the City should do something for the residents who live along 610.

Jose Hernandez, Fence Contractor-Mr. Hernandez mentioned that the wall was only 3 feet tall when Mr. Chodrow approached him so there was no way of him knowing that it was going to be 10 feet in height. He added that Mr. Chodrow is claiming that the existing fence is his and that is why he is against approval of the wall. Mr. Hernandez informed the Board that he has been approached by several people that live on 610 who wish to have a 10 foot fence. He added that those residents are waiting to see if Mr. Memon's 10 foot wall is approved, and if so, they will also be applying.

Board Member Karakowsky asked Mr. Chodrow if he was concerned about the height of the wall or if it was simply the fact that the materials that he had maintained will be gone.

Mr. Chodrow explained that it is more about the fact that there will no longer be continuity and that he will have to buy his own fence back.

Board Member Karakowsky asked Mr. Memon if the trees that he mentioned were cut down before or after he owned the property.

Mr. Memon stated that they were cut down prior to him buying the house.

Board Member Raval mentioned that he is having a hard time finding evidence to support the applicant and City's opinion that this proposal will not substantially diminish or impair property values in the neighborhood. He reiterated that if this special exception is granted many others will come forward asking for the same thing. Board Member Raval then pointed out that if someone were to be denied that special exception it would negatively impact their property value.

Mr. Memon felt that the Board should look at each application individually and consider the fact that the elevation of his home is higher than the homes surrounding him. He reiterated that most areas of Bellaire have different color and different height fences, so there is no consistency. Mr. Memon pointed out that his property value would go down without the allowance of a 10 foot fence because no one is going to want to buy the property without having that buffer from 610.

Board Member McGinty asked how far it was from the back of his house to the back of his lot.

Mr. Memon stated that it was 15 feet.

Board Member McGinty asked if they had considered doing a "step up" on the wall in order to gradually increase the height to 10 feet. She also asked what kind of finish would be on the cinder block.

Mr. Memon stated that they had not considered doing a step increase, and that the cinder block will be finished with stucco.

Board Member McGinty asked what type of gate was going to be installed in the front wall.

Mr. Memon explained that it would be wrought iron.

Board Member McGinty asked if the gate would be 8 or 10 feet.

Mr. Memon informed her that it would be 8 feet.

Board Member McGinty asked if the neighbor across from him had objected to the 10 foot wall on Pine Street.

Mr. Memon stated that he had not.

Board Member Wheeler stated that he felt this was a reasonable request.

Chairman Sharp asked if the gate was approved in the building plans.

Mrs. Sampson stated that no gate was proposed in the plans that were submitted.

Chairman Sharp asked if a gate or Knox Box would be required for an 8 foot fence.

Mrs. Sampson explained that it would not be required due to the fact that an 8 foot fence is easier for the emergency personnel to jump than a 10 foot fence.

Board Member Miller asked Mr. Memon if he has had any discussions with the neighbor across the street regarding the 10 foot wall.

Mr. Memon explained that because construction of the wall was initially approved by the City, it is already at a height of 10 feet and he has not heard any objections by the neighbor.

Board Member Miller agreed that the City should look into increasing in the allowable fence height in order to match the change in required elevation. However, for this specific situation he feels that the Board is limited to the standards under Section 24-718. Board Member Miller stated that he didn't hear a lot of evidence to satisfy those standards.

Board Member Raval felt that by granting this Special Exception the Board would essentially be legislating a new 10 foot rule.

Mrs. Sampson reiterated that no application sets precedence for another and each must be taken into consideration individually.

Board Member McGinty mentioned that neither TxDot nor the City of Bellaire have done anything for the residents that live along 610 and felt that it was the Board's duty to grant this Special Exception.

Board Member Karakowsky also sympathized with Mr. Memon, but pointed out that the Board has a statute that it has to follow when considering these applications. She then quoted the Fire Chief in saying that, "The Bellaire Fire Department strongly urges Development Services to require enforcement of the code." Board Member Karakowsky felt that the Board's hands were tied.

Board Member Ligh pointed out that because the Development Services Department, the City's code enforcers, has no objections to the granting of this

Special Exception, he does not see a problem with the approval of this application.

Board Member Miller asked if the Fire Chief's recommendation was made before or after staff's recommendation was completed.

Mrs. Sampson stated that staff's recommendation was done prior to receiving the comment from the Fire Chief.

Board Member Miller asked that in the future staff provide the Board, in a timely manner, with any additional materials that are received.

a motion was made by Board Member Miller and seconded by Vice Chairman Ligh to approve the Special Exception.

an amended motion was made by Board Member Amended Motion: McGinty to allow for a 10 foot wall along 610 with an 8 foot wall along Pine St.

The amended motion failed for lack of a second.

Vote on the Original Motion: 3-4, the Special Exception was denied.

RESULT: FAILED [3 TO 4]

MOVER: Seth A. Miller, Board Member SECONDER: Tom Ligh, Vice Chairman AYES: McGinty, Ligh, Wheeler

NAYS: Raval, Sharp, Karakowsky, Miller

2. BOA-2015-02-Request by Roy Harper & Associates, Inc., on behalf of Crosspoint Church/West University Baptist Church, owner of the property at 4609 Bellaire Boulevard, for a variance from Chapter 24, Section 526 B. (1) a. of the City of Bellaire Code of Ordinances, to allow for a minimum lot area of approximately 21,600 square feet in lieu of the required 22,000 square feet. The property is located in the R-3 Zoning District.

Board Member Ligh informed the Board that he is a member of the church and that he wished to recuse himself from voting on this item.

Attorney Petrov again reviewed the standards for the granting of a variance.

Presentation by the Applicant

Roy Harper, Roy Harper AIA & Associates-Mr. Harper informed the Board that he is the architect for the project and a long time member of the West University Baptist Church. He then provided the Board with a site plan for the project that had recently been revised due to comments and concerns of surrounding neighbors and of the Planning and Zoning Commission during a public hearing for the church on Tuesday night. Mr. Harper explained that the entrance to the property had been moved from Bellaire Court to Bellaire Boulevard in order to better accommodate the residents. He stated that the church purchased the property at 4609 Bellaire Boulevard back in 2004, when the minimum lot size was 7,400 square feet. He added that since then that requirement has increased to 22,000 square, which is larger than the size of their

Generated: 7/10/2015 2:40 PM

property. Mr. Harper informed the Board that the church is simply seeking a variance of 400 square feet to allow for the development of their property, in which a hardship was created by the ordinance change.

Staff Findings

ChaVonne Sampson, Development Services Manager-Mrs. Sampson reiterated that this property is located at 4609 Bellaire Boulevard, within the R-3 Zoning District. She added that the mail outs were sent out to surrounding residents on April 6, 2015 and that a legal notice was published in the Southwest News on April 7, 2015. Mrs. Sampson stated that the applicant is requesting a variance from section 24-526 B. (1) a. of the code in order to reduce the minimum required lot area for a church from 22,000 square feet to 21,600 square feet, a 400 foot variance. She stated that the applicant is also requesting a specific use permit from the Planning and Zoning Commission, for which the public hearing was continued until the Commission's May meeting, and that information on the pending application before the Commission is included for background information only. Mrs. Sampson added that the Board's task is to determine if a variance is appropriate for this particular parcel, not to determine the appropriateness of the proposed development. She explained that the property in question was purchased by the church in 2004, prior to the increase in the required minimum lot size in 2014, meaning that the hardship was not self created. She added that without the granting of this variance the church would not be able to develop the property. Mrs. Sampson informed the Board that upon review of the application and materials submitted, the Director of Development Services feels that the request does not conflict with the standards outlined in Article VII, Division 1, Section 24-704 of the Code, and therefore offers no objections to the granting of the variance.

Public Comments-

Stanley Novy, 126 Bellaire Court-Mr. Novy Informed the Board that he and his neighbors have been concerned that the proposed development would increase the amount of traffic on their street. He added that the site plan is still up in the air and that he does not feel comfortable not knowing what the final development will look like. Mr. Novy stated that the current site plan is much better than the previous, but that it is still hard to speak in favor of an application when you don't know what the final plan is going to be.

Daine Novy, 126 Bellaire Court-Mrs. Novy felt that it was somewhat premature to ask for a variance for a project that had not yet been finalized. She added that all of the neighbors have appreciated the responsiveness and respectfulness of the church with regard to the concern of the residents, but stated that screening and buffering is of great concern and something that has not yet been addressed.

Shannon Tanner, Campus Pastor at Crosspoint Church-Pastor Tanner explained that the plan has been changing simply because the church is trying to be a good neighbor, and that there has always been a very amicable relationship with the surrounding residents. He added that they are trying to mitigate as much traffic as possible, and would also be willing to build some type of fencing or structure that would buffer the church property from the neighborhood, if necessary. He ended by saying that the church wishes to be able to expand, but also to show respectfulness to their neighbors.

Lynn McBee-Ms. McBee stated that Bellaire's population is very limited, and that an increase in density is the last thing that the City needs. She added that the public hearing before the Planning and Zoning Commission had been continued so that the church could get its act together to establish what it was asking for and to address some concerns from the residents. She mentioned that no one has asked the question of why the minimum lot size was increased by such a huge amount.

Rebuttal of Applicant

Mr. Harper agreed that there are still some decisions to be made with regard to the final project, but that the only changes being made are with regard to the residents' concerns. He felt that the solution provides well for the church and takes care of the neighbors. Mr. Harper added that screening and buffering will also be taken care of, as necessary.

Questions by the Board

Board Member McGinty asked what the parking regulation is for this building under the city's code.

Mrs. Sampson explained that it will be determinate on the square footage of the building or the amount of seating available, and will be regulated by the Planning and Zoning Commission.

Board Member McGinty asked if there was a requirement for green space.

Attorney Petrov stated that the green space requirement is 50%.

Board Member Raval asked Mr. Harper if he would be willing to amend his request to include a barrier or buffer along Bellaire Court.

Mr. Harper stated that the church would consider anything that would make the project more beneficial to the City of Bellaire's residents.

Board Member Karakowsky asked Mr. Harper if the lot could be sold, hypothetically, without impacting what is currently built.

Mr. Harper explained that the playground that is currently there may encroach on the property, but that it shouldn't post that much of a problem.

Board Member Karakowsky asked Mr. and Mrs. Novy if they had any specific conditions of screening or buffering that they wished to see put on the variance.

Mrs. Novy stated that she would like to see a solid fence with landscaping along Bellaire Court.

Board Member Karakowky asked Attorney Petrov if he agreed with Ms. McBee's characterization that the Planning and Zoning Commission agreed to recess their decision because the church "didn't have their act together."

Attorney Petrov stated that he would not have characterized it like that. He added that it was apparent in the discussion that the church was trying to work with the residents to resolve any issues or concerns that they may have, which

led to the Commission continuing their public hearing in order to get more information from the applicant and the residents.

Board Member Karakowsky asked if Attorney Petrov recalled any specific concerns of the residents other than the location of the driveway and the screening and buffering of Bellaire Court.

Attorney Petrov informed the Board that those were the main concerns. He added that the neighbor immediately adjacent was also concerned about the second story windows that were being proposed.

Board Member Miller mentioned that the Board is charged with applying the required standards in order to grant a variance. He informed Mr. Harper that the application is devoid of any evidence regarding the development not being materially detrimental or injurious to other property owners or improvements within the neighborhood. He asked if Mr. Harper could provide any evidence to that point.

Mr. Harper explained that they are taking every precaution to develop the building in a way that will not negatively impact the surrounding neighbors. He also mentioned that John McDonald, Development Services Director, stated that he could not find any reason why this project would be detrimental to the community.

Board Member Miller asked Mr. Harper how the development will impact the traffic on Bellaire Court.

Mr. Harper did not feel that the traffic on Bellaire Court would be impacted due to the fact that there will be no driveway there, and the walk gate that exists on the west property line will be closed. He added that there will be adequate parking on site, and that most of the youth that will be using the center are not of driving age.

Board Member Miller asked if any studies have been done with regard to the impact of the project on surrounding property values.

Mr. Harper stated that no studies have been done on that.

Board Member Miller asked what type of analysis staff performed in order to come to the conclusion that the variance has met all of the standards required for approval.

Mrs. Sampson explained that one of the considerations made by staff was that the hardship was created by a change in the zoning code, and was not self created by the property owner. She added that the city does not feel as though the development of this project is going to negatively impact its surrounding property owners or developments.

Chairman Sharp wanted clarification that the application would not even be in front of the Board if it were not for the lack of 400 square feet.

Mrs. Sampson confirmed that.

Chairman Sharp asked if the 22,000 square foot requirement was specific to churches, and if staff could give any background information on why the change was made.

Mrs. Sampson explained that it pertains to churches and schools. Attorney Petrov explained that the idea was to require parcels to be bigger than your average residential lot to help prevent someone from turning a smaller, residential sized lot into a church.

Chairman Sharp asked if there was any type of grand fathering that could take place.

Attorney Petrov stated that there is no grand fathering allowed in this instance. He added that the applicant had been in discussions with the Development Services Department prior to the amendment to this code, so it is obvious that they had been planning this project for some time, and working under the assumption that their lot satisfied the requirements.

Chairman Sharp asked if all of the concerns with the development, such as the location of the driveways, the buffering, and placement of the windows, etc. are issues that the specific use process will address.

Attorney Petrov confirmed this, but stated that the Board has the ability to add conditions to their ruling as well.

Consideration of the Application

Board Member Karakowsky pointed out that the Board is simply considering what the result of allowing them to build with 400 square feet less would be, not considering all of the specifications of the building. She also stated that Section 24-708 specifically grants the Board the right to put conditions on the granting of variances, which includes things related to screening, landscaping, location, and other conditions necessary to preserve the character of the area and protect properties in the vicinity. She felt that although the Board's question is narrow, it is their responsibility to consider what can be done in order to protect the neighbors.

Board Member Miller felt that there was not enough evidence to prove that this application meets all of the standards.

Board Member Karakowsky again pointed out that the Board is not charged with determining the impact of the project, simply the impact of allowing a variance in 400 square feet. She added that a lack of 400 square feet is not materially detrimental or injurious to other properties or improvements in the neighborhood.

Board Member Raval stated that he is somewhat hesitant about adding any conditions to this project due to the fact that it is at such an early stage, but at the same time he feels that it should somehow be addressed.

Board Member Karakowsky stated that she is struggling with the same thing.

Attorney Petrov informed the Board that if they feel as though they need more information on some specific points, they have the option to continue the hearing until next month.

Board Member Wheeler pointed out that if he wanted to he could find a reason to deny every single application that comes through the city, but this is the Board of Adjustment, not "the Board of no." He added that Board needs to figure out a way to be reasonable and help their neighbors when they need help, not deny them things based on technicalities. Board Member Wheeler felt that the Planning and Zoning Commission is also in place for a reason, and that they will take care of the specifics of the project.

Board Member McGinty agreed that the only charge of the Board is to determine whether or not to grant a variance of 400 feet, and stated that she sees no reason why it should be denied. She added that it is the job of Mr. McDonald and the Planning and Zoning Commission to ensure that all other regulations are met.

Chairman Sharp felt as though it is the Board's responsibility to include conditions as they feel appropriate in order to protect the surrounding residents, but wasn't sure how to go about doing it.

Board Member Karakowsky asked Board Member Wheeler if he doesn't feel that it is the Board's responsibility to put some conditions on it.

Board Member Wheeler stated that he did not feel that any conditions were necessary in this instance. He felt confident that the Planning and Zoning Commission would do their job, and that they have more experience with screening and other aspects of the project than the Board of Adjustment does.

Attorney Petrov reiterated that the Planning and Zoning Commission will consider the specifics of the projects, such as, landscaping, screening, buffering, etc.

Board Member Miller felt that the application was premature, and was still concerned about the lack of evidence proving that it met all of the standards for a variance to be granted.

Board Member Wheeler pointed out that it is hard to prove a negative, and that he is asking for things that no one can specifically provide evidence for.

Motion: a motion was made by Board Member Karakowsky and seconded by Board Member Wheeler to approve the variance as requested.

Board Member Miller asked if there will be no conditions added.

Board Member Raval mentioned that he is hesitant to add any conditions because an excessive amount of detail with lock the applicant in.

Board Member Miller also pointed out that doing so may bind the Planning and Zoning Commission.

Vote: 6-0. The variance was granted as requested.

RESULT: APPROVED [6 TO 0]

MOVER: Debbie Karakowsky, Board Member

SECONDER: Sean Wheeler, Board Member

AYES: McGinty, Raval, Sharp, Karakowsky, Wheeler, Miller

RECUSED: Ligh

9. GENERAL COMMENTS

(Limitations: Six (6) minutes per speaker with extensions in two (2) minute increments as approved by a majority vote of the Board Members present).

Lynn McBee-Ms. McBee suggested that the Board schedule a meeting or workshop and discuss whether the City has any obligation to modify impact on the residents when a zoning change takes place. She urged the Board to attend Crosspoint Church's hearing on May 14th before the Planning and Zoning Commission. She thanked the Board Members for their patience.

Councilman Andrew Friedberg-Councilman Friedberg congratulated the Board on a great meeting and discussion.

Attorney Petrov mentioned that it may be appropriate for the Planning and Zoning Commission to take a look at the allowable fence height along 610 due to the new height adjustments. He added that he has already emailed Mr. McDonald to add that topic to his list of items for future agendas.

10.GENERAL COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS

Board Member Miller mentioned that he felt as though staff was not doing a great job of screening the applications for variances and special exceptions, and asked that something be done to better that process.

11.ANNOUNCEMENTS

There were no announcements made.

12.ADJOURNMENT

Motion: a motion was made by Board Member Wheeler and seconded by Board Member Miller to adjourn the regular meeting.

Vote: the motion carried on a unanimous vote of 7-0.

The meeting was adjourned at 9:25 PM.